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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Ebix Money Express Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Ebix Money Express Private
Limited ("the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (ineluding Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Anditor's Responsibilities for the Andit of the Standalone Financial Stalements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIL) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAT's Cade of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
staterments,

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to note 45A to the financial statements, with respect to Net Owned Fund (NOF),
being negative during the year and being restored to above the threshold limit during March'20,

Cur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Information other than financial statement and auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information
comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon, The aforesaid report is expected to be

made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
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In connection with our audit of the Standalene Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in deing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read
the company’s annual report and if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and shall take appropriate
actions, if required.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
[ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and ofther irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from malerial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalene Financial Statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directers are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticisin throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

- error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

4 coverride of internal control,
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¢« Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such confrols,

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstaterments in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Repart) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “ Annexure
A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

B) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended).

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B,

g) The Company is a Private Limited Company and accordingly requirements of Section 197(16)
of the Act are not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No -006711N/ N__Sﬂ'ﬂ_l_.]ZE}

i“@“‘,.ﬁf Neena Goel &/
Place of Signature; New Delhi [Paf‘t:iéﬂ: : -
Dated: September 18, 2020 Membership No. 057986
UDIN: 20057986 AA AATX2868
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in our report of even date to the members of Ebix Money Express Private Limited on the
Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, we report that:

(i) (a)

(b)

(c)

(if)

(ii)

(@)

(b)

(€)
(iv)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

B, |_|r.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us during the course
of audit, the company has mairtained proper recerds showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us during the course
of audit, property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets and
no material discrepancy was noticed on such verification as compared to book records.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not have any
immovable property and hence clause 3 (i) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the company,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, inventories have
been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals having regard to the size
of the company and no material discrepancy was noticed on such verification as compared to
book records.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has g‘r.anted unsecured
loan to the parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013, In respect of such loan:

The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans is, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the company's interest.

The principal and the interest are payable on demand. As explained by the management, the
Company has not called for repayment of principal and interest till March 31, 2020, therefore,
regularity of the receipt against principal and interest cannot be commented upon.

There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us during the course
of audit, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans given, investments made, guarantees and securities given.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of Sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Cenitral Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined
by us, we state that the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, goods
and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities except for deposit of advance income tax.
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{wiii)

(ix)

(x)

(xii})

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

Further, there were no undisputed statutory dues as referred to above as at March 31, 2020
outstanding for a period of more than six menths from the date they become payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the books and records
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowings to any financial institution, bank or dues to debenture holders during the period.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) and term loans during the vear. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us no
fraud by the company or on the company, by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 are not
applicable for Private Limited Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us during the course
of audit, the company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, clause 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placements of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
Directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly, clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.
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{xvi)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us during the course
of audik, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank

of India Act 1934.
For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants” »007 & -
(Firm Registration No -00671IN/ NEUDU%}’ i T
(=] NEW

eena Goell 7 —~— "
Place of Signature: New Delhi {Partner) :
Dated: September 18, 2020 Membership No, 057986

UDIN: 20057986 AAAATX2868

T R Chadha & Co., a partnership firm converted inte T R Chadha & Co LLP
(A limited liability partnership with LLP Identification No. AAF-3926) with effect from 28" December, 2015

Corporate & Regd, Office: B-30, Connaught Place, Kuthiala Building, Mew Delhi = 110001
Phone: 43259900, Fax: 43259930, E-mail: delhi@trchadha.com




T R Chadha & Co LLP (@

Chartered Accountants .

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Ebix
Money Express Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ebix Money Express Private
Limited {"the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In pur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
f_‘onsidering the essental components of internal control stated in the Guidance MNote on Audit af
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note, These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reparting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements, Those Standards and
the Guidance MNole require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reparting was established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial confrals system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial contrels over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exits, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risk
of misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasomable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrals over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may cccur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial contrels over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No -006711N/ N500028) .-
Py

Place of Signature: New Delhi (Partneg}s, =
Dated: September 18, 2020 Membership No. 057986 """
UDIN: 20057986 A A A ATX2868
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Note 1

Note 2
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Description of Business

Reporting Entity

Ebix Money Lxpress Private Limited (the “Company”) is a Company domiciled in India and limited by shares. The Company is Heensed by the
Reserve Bark of India to operate as Full Fledged Money Changer {"FFMC") and also acts as an agent of Western Union Ireland (‘the Principal’)
for the Money Transfer Service Scheme {(“MTSS") in India. The company also provides Program Management support {or Prepaid Cards,
Domwestic Money Transfer and national level business correspandence services for certain banks.

Sumunary of Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these statements. ‘These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presenied, untess otherwise stated.

Statement of Compliance

The Company has prepared firancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 on a going concern basis following accrual system of
accounting and comply with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as specilied under Section 133 af Companies Act 2013 read with rule 3 of
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparalion

The financial statements have been prepared on the listorical cost basis, except for certain {inancial mstruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period. Histerical cost s generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services,

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee {INR’), which is the Company’s functional currency.

Current and non-current classification '

All assets and habilities have been classified as curvent or non-current as pey the Company’s operating cycle and other eriteria set out in the
Sehedule 11 (Division 1) to the Companies Act, 2013. Pased on the nature of services and the time between the rendering of smvice and their
realization in cash and cash cquivalents, the Company has ascerlained ils operating cycle as twelve months for the purpese of current and
noncurrent classification of assets and Habilities. :

Use of Judgement and astimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
company’s accounting policies and the reporled amounts of assets, liabilities, inceme and expenses. Management heleves that the estimatles
used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reagonable. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Fstimates- and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to cstimates are recognized prospectively.

Critical Accounting Estimates

i, Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

The useful Hves and residual values of Company's asscts ase determined by managenent at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, The lives are based on historical expericnce with similar assels as well as anticipation of future events, which may
impact their life, such as changes in technology.

il. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settie the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can e made. These are reviewed at cach balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements, Contingent assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

iii. Defined Bencfit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefil abligation are based on actuarial valualion using the projected
unit credit method, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may difter from actual developments in the future. These
include the delermination of the discount rate, future salary increases and moralily rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumplions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.




Ebix Money Express Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

iv. Income Taxes & Deferred Taxes

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision far income taxes including iudgment on whether tax positions are probable of
being sustained in lax assessiments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.
Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the lax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that
have been enacled or substantively enacted at the reporting date, The ultimate realization of deferred tax agsets is depencent upon the
generation of future taxeble profits during the periads in which those temporary differences and tax lass carry forwards become deductible. The
Company considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabililies and projected future laxable income in making this assessment, The amount
of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near tern il estimates of future taxable income during the carry-
forward peried are reduced.

v, Impairment Testing

Intangible assets are tested for impairment at least annually and when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable
amount of the asset or cash generating units to which these pertain is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating
units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to dispose. The cateulation of value in use of a cash generating unit involves use of
significant estimales and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings mutiples, growth rates and net margins used to caleulate projecied
future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.

vi. Expected credit losses on financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumplions about risk of default and expected timing of collection. The Company
vses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inpuis to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history,
customar's creditworthiness, existing market condilions as well as forward locking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

0) Property, plant and equipment:

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipinent are stated at cost less accumulated deprecialion and accumulated impairment toss if any. The cost of
assels comprises of purchase price and directly altributable cost of bringing the assels to working condition for its intended use including
borrowing cost and incidental expenditure during consiruction incurred up to the date when the assets are ready fo use. If significant parts of an
item of property, plant and equipment have different usefu! lives, then they are accounited for as a separate item (major components) of property,
plant and equipment. Land and buildings acquired/constructed, not intended to be used in the operations of the Company are categorized as
investment property. Any gain/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized in Profit and loss account.

ii. Subsequent Measurement
Subsequent expenditure is capilalized only if it is probable that the uture economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
company, ’

ili. Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is caleulated on Written down Value Method (WDV) using the rates arrived at based on the estimated useful lives
given in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 Depreciation methads, useful jives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end
and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements
upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed of
are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value Jess cost to sell.

tv. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at historical cost. Intangibles assets having a finite life are subsequently
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitatized only if it is
probable that the fulure economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset wilh a finite useful life are
reviewed al least at the end of each reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.




Ebix Money Express Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

v. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 - ‘Impairment of Assets”. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generaling unil is the higher of ils fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, (he estimated future cash flows are discounted Lo their present value using a pre- tax discount rate that refiects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment tesling, assels that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together inlo the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets {the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU").

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds it estimated recoverable amount. Impairment fosses are
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

Assessment is also done at each balance shoet for possible reversal of an impairment loss recognized for an asset, in prior accounting periods.

¢) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entify.
Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value on initial recognition plus, in the case of {inancial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
Debt instruments al amortized cost
i3 Debt instrument at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCH)
it Debt instrument at {air value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Fquity Instrument measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCH)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured al the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

{a) The assel is held within a business model whose objective is o held assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

{b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) on the
principal amoumnt oulstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR {effective interest rate) methed.
Amottized cost is calculated by taking inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortizalion is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at Fair value through OCI {FVTOCI)

A ‘debi instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCH if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the [inancial assets, and

(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPP

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the OCI However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from the
equily Lo profit and loss. Interest carned whilst holding FVTGC] debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EiR method.

Debt instrument at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Any debl instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTQCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In
addition, the Company may clect lo classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amorlized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL.
However, such election is aliowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with ali changes recognized in the profit and loss.
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Bquity Instrument measured at fair value through Other

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as FVTPL.
For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in OCL The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basts. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides Lo classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, including foreign exchange
gain or loss and excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may {sansfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at {air value with all changes recognized in the profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.
removed from the company’s balance sheet} when:

(a) The rights Lo receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(b} The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assel or has assumed an obligation o pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantiaily all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows {rom an asset or has enterad inte a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the assel, the company confinues to recognize the transferred asset fo the extenl of the
company’s conlinuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and cbligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that lakes the form of-a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay. i

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated lo the portion of
the asset de-recognized) and the sum of (i} the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new Hability assumed) and (ii)
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OClis revagnized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Campany assesses on a forward-looking basis, the exvected credit losses associated with the assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI
debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recopnition. If credif risk has not increased significantly, 2.month ECL is used Lo provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, litetime ECL is used. if, in a subsequent period, eredit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit visk since initial recognition, ther the entity reverts o recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitied by Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments” which requires expected
life time losses to be recognized from initial recognition of receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impainment loss
on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date, these historical default rates ave reviewed and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analyzed.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement ]
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amottized cost, using
the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are
jnitially measured al fair value and are subsequently yeasured at amoriized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settfement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over the term of {he borrowings in
the siatcmen{(@ Brofit and loss.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of linancial Habilities depends on their classific.atim\, as described below:

1) Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Afier initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profil or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amorlization process. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EiR amortization is
included in finance costs in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to borrowings, trade payables and other contractual liabilities,

2} Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss include financial labilities held for trading and {inancial Liabilities designated upon initial

recognition as at fair value through profit or Joss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Cains or losses on Liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss. Financial Labilities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credii risks are recognized in OCL These gains/lasses are not
subsequently transferred lo P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value
of such liability are recognized in the stalement of profil and loss.

3) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceiled or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantially different, If
the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired.
In this case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset cardied at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in
derecognilion of the financial asset. In this case, the company recalculates the gross cairying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the
amount arising from adjtsting the gross carrying amount as a madification gain or Joss in profit or loss. If such a modification is carried out
beeause of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented
as inferest income. :

Financial liabilities

The company derecognizes a financial lability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or Joss.

i} Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from Money Transfer Services. With effect from 1st April 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115
whick establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to b2 recognized. The Ind A5115
replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted the Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect
method. The effect of initially applying this standard is recognized at the dale of initial application (ie. April 1, 2018). The standard is applied
retrospectively only Lo the conlracts that are not compieted as at the date of iniial application. The comparative information in the statement of
profit and loss is not restated - .. the comparative information continues to be reporied under the Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. Refer Note 2 Lo the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, for the revenue recognition policy as per the Ind AS 18 and Ind
AS 11. The impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial statements of the Company is insignificant.
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Revenue from Services

Income [rom Money Transfer services is accounted for on completion of transactions with the end customer in India. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of consideration received or receivable, net of service tax, sales tax, value added tax and GST. Revenue is recognized when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefils will flow to the enlity.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized using the Elfective Interest Rate (EIR’) method. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. The FIR is computed basis the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument, The calculation
includes all fees, fransaction costs, and ail other premiums er discounts paid or received between parties Lo the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized, when the right to receive the dividend is established,

i} Foreign currency transactions & {ranslations
a. On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

b, As at the reporling date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies (such as cash, receivables, payables ete.) outstanding at the year-
end are translated at exchange rates applicable on yeay end date.

o As al the reporling date, non-monetary ilems denominated in foreign currency, {such as fixed assets) are valued at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transaction and carried at cost.

d.  Any gains or losses arising due to exchange differences arising on transiation or setliement are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

i) Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits
Liabilities for salaries, including other monetary and non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up o the end of the reporting
period and are imeasured al the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Defined contribution plans

The Company has defined contribution plan for the post-employment benefits namely Provident Fund which is administered through
the Regional Provident Pund Commissioner and the contributions towards such fund are recognized as employee benefits expense and charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss when they are due. The Company does not carry any further obligations with respect to this, apart from
contributions made on a monthly basis.

Defined benefit plans

The company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the ameunt of future benelit that employees have
earned in the cwrrent and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined
benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified acluary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation resulls in a
polential asset for the company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions o the plan. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the retumn on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognized immediately in Other Comprehensive I[ncome. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability {assets) is computed by
applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (assel), to the net defined liability {asset} at the start of the financial year
after taking into account any changes as a resuit of contribution and benefit payments during the year, Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans ace recognized in profit or loss. When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates lo past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss, The company
recognizes gains and tosses on the setilement of a defined benefit plan when the selilement eccurs.
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k) Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs cansist of inierest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described in Ind AS 109 - ‘Financial [nstraments’

Genreral and specific borrowing costs that are direetly attributable to the acquisition, conslruction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.

Qualifying assels are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalization. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary 1o prepare the qualifying assets for their
intended uses are complete. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the peried in which they are incurred.

1) Income tax
Income Lax expense comprises current and deferred tax. i is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates lo items recognized
directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.
a. Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected lax payable or receivable on the taxable income or Joss for the year and any adjustment Lo the Lax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacled or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax assels
and liabilities are offsct only if, the Company:
i} Has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and
it} Intends either to setile on a net basis, or o realize the asset and seitle the liability simultaneously.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using balance sheel approach on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax base. Deferred tax is nol recognized f{or temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or
Jiabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.

Deferred tax assets are Lecognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extenl that it is probable
tha! future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the exteat that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability
of future taxable profits improves,

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxabie profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rales enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the
reporting dale, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assels and labilities are offset only if:
a) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current lax
b) The deferred tax assels snd the deferred tax Habilities relate to income taxes levied by the sae taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

Delerred 1ax is recognized in profit or loss except (o the extent that it relates to items recognized directly m OCL or equity, in which case it is
recognized in QCl or equily.

m) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outliow of rescurces will be required to settle the ebligation and the amount can be reliably estimated, Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the

class of obligalions as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect Lo any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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Ebix Money Express Private Limited
Notes o Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the presenl obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-lax rate that reflocts current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability, The increase in the provision due lo the passage of time is recognized as inlerest
expense,

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise frem past events and whose axistence will enly be confirmed by the occurrence or nen-
vecurrence of ene or more fuiure events not wholly within the contro} of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outllow of economic
Lenefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabililies are disclosed on the basis of judgement of the management/independent
experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Contingenl assels are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nen-occurrence
of one or more uncertain fusure events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disciosed i the financial statements
when inflow of economic benelits is probable on the basis of judgement of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that
developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

n) Casl and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cagh at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits with ariginal maturities of three months
or less thal is readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

o) Leases .
The Company has adopted the new accounting standard Ind AS 116 “Leases” on April 1, 2019 as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019, notified by MCA on March 30, 2019, Ind AS 116 is a single lessee accounting model and sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurernent, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. On application of IndAS 116, the nature of expenses
nas changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-of-use assets(ROU), and finance cost for interest accrued on
lease liability.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys Lhe right to control the use of an identified asset for a pertod of lime in exchange for
consideration,

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease.
The arrangement is, or containg, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement conveys
a right 1o use the asset even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the conlract as a lease separately from nen-lease components of the contract and
alfocates the consideration in the centract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alene price of the lease component and the
aggregale stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Cempany recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease teym at the lease commencement date.
The cost of the righl-of-use asset measured at inceplion shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease paymenis made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which
itis located, The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any
and acjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are
determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assels are tested for impairment whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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The Company measures the lease lability at the present value of the jease payments that are not paid al the commencement date of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate hmplicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rale cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, ona lease by lease
pasis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portf(')lio as a whole. The
lease payments shall include lixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a pwrchase option where the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise {hat option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
excrcising an option to termiaate the lease.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount fo reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying
amount te reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease Hability due to modification as
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of madification. Where the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any
remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to shorl-term icases of all assets that have a lease lerm of 12
months or less and leases for which the underlying assel is of low value. The lease payments associaled with these leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Transition to Ind AS 114

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116, Leases and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using
the moditied retrospective method and has taken the comulative adjustiment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application.
Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate
and the ROU asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the
Company’s incremental borrowing rate al the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retraspectively adjusied and therefore will continue Lo be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year
ended March 31, 2019,

The {ollowing is the summary of practical expedieﬁts elected on initial application :

1. Applied a single discount rate toa portfalio of leases of sirilar assets in similar economic envirorument with a similar end date

2. 'Applied the exemption not to recognize ROU assets and liabilities for leases with jess than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial
application

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the ROU asset at the date of initial application.

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to
coafracts that swere previously identified as leases under Ind AS17.

p) Operating segment
In accordance with Ind AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment informalion are identified on the basis of internal reports used
by the Company’s management fo allocate yesources to the segments and assess their performance. The Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer is collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operaling Decision Maker' or ‘CODM within the meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for
internal reporting purposes may evolve in conmection with performance assessment measures put in place.

Segiment results that are reported ta the CODM include items directly atiributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly head office expenses, finance costs, income tax expenses and head office income.

Revenue directly attributable to ihe segments is considered as segment revenue. Fxpenses directly attributable to the segments and common
expenses attocated on a reasonable basis are considered as segment expenses, )

Segment capital expendilure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets other
than goodwill.
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Segment assets comprise property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, {rade and other recuivebles, inveniories and other assets that can be
direclly or reasonably allocated to segments. For the purpose of segment reporting for the year, properly, plant and equipment have been
allocated to segments based on the extent of usage of assets for operalions attributable to the respective segments. Segment assets do not include
investrrents, income tax assets, capital work in progress, capital advances, head office assets and other current assets that cannot reasanably be
allocated to segments. ' '

Segment Habilities include all operating liabilities in respect of a segment and consist principally of trade and other payables, employee benefits
and provisions. Segment labilities do not include equity, income tax Habilities, loans and borrowings and other liabilities and provisions that
cannot reasonably be allocated to segments.

e

q) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share ave computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity ghares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity shave is compuled by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equily shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equily shares considered {or deriving basic earnings per equity chare and alse the weighted average number of
equily shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. :

1) Inventories
Inventories are valued al the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories o their prasent location and condition, Cost is determined on first in first oul basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated seliing price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cosls of
completion and the estimated costs necessary Lo make the sale.

The diminution in lhe value of obsolete, unscrviceable and surplus stores & spares is ascertained on review and provided for.

s) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA") notifics new standard of amendments to the existing startdards. On 24 July 2020, the MCA has issued
amendments to cerain Ind AS. The amendments are 2ffective from annual reporling periods beginningon or alter 1 April 2020, Seme of the
important amendiments refate to:

. Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error; Refined
definition of lerm "Materiality'- 'Injormatien is material if omitting, misstating or cbscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basts of those financial statements, which provide [inancial
information about a specific reparting entity.’

-Ind AS 103, Business Combinations: Revised definition of a ‘business” and introduction of an optional concentration test to permit a simplified
asseseneent of whether an acquired set of activities and assels iz not a business. '

- Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments: Modification to some specific hedge accounting requirements Lo provide relief to the patential effects of
uncertainty caused by the interest rate benchmark {IBOR) refornz,

- Ind Ind AS 116, Leases: Practical expedient which permils lessees not to account for COVID-19 related rent concessions as a lease modification.
However, in case a lessee has not yet approved the financia! staterhents for issue before the issuance of the amendments, then the same may be
applicd for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler 1 April 2019,

. Irnd AS 10 - "Events after the Reperting Period™ Disclosure for nature of the event and an estimate of its (inancial effect / not being able to
inake such an estimate will be required for all non- adjusting events.

. Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: A management decision to restructure , taken before the end of the
reporting period does not give rise to @ constructive obligation at the end of the reporting period unless the entity has, before the end of the
reporting period, started to implement the restructuring plan or announced the main features of the resiructuring plan to those affected by it.

The company is in 1he process of evaluating the impact of adoption of the above pronpuncements on its financial statements.
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Ebix Money Express Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

4 Right of Use Assets (RoUA) As at As at
March 3%, 2020 March 31, 2019
Building Building

Gross Carrying Cost
Transition effect as on April 01, 2019 -

Additions during the year 488.47
Disposals/deductions during the year -
As at March 31, 2020 488.47
Depreciation

Transition eifect as on April 01, 2019 -
Additions during the year 108.78
Disposals/deductions during the year -
As at March 31, 2020 108.78

Net Carrying Cost

As at March 31, 2020 379.69

As at March 31, 2015 -

Nete 4.1 'The aggregate depreciation expense on RoU Assefs is included under depreciation and amnortization expense in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Note 4.2 Lease Liability towards Righl-of-use-assels, refer note 43

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

5 Goodwiil As at As at
March 31, 2020 tarch 31, 2019
Goodwill on BTA 36,961.90 36,961.90
36,961.90 36,961.90
Note 5.3

Coodwill is tested for impairment on annual basis and impairment is carried out whenever there is an indication that the re
than its carrying amount based on 2 raumber of factors including business plan, operating results, future cash flows and e

coverable amount is Jess

conomic condilions. The

recoverabie amount is deternvined based on higher of value in use and fair value. The company carvied cut goodwill impairment test and 1o

impairment is identified as of March 31, 2020 as recoverable value exceeds the canying value.

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

6 Other Intangible Assets As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Computer software
Gross Carrying Cost

Computer software

Opening Balance 3177 31.77
Additions during the year - -
Disposals/deductions during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 31,77 31.77
Accumulated Amostisation

Opening Balance 13.15 6.80
Additions during the year 6.37 635
Dispesals/ deductions during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 19,53 13.15
Net Carrying Cost

As at March 31, 2020 12.24 18.61
As at March 31, 201% 18.61 2497
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10

11

11

Financial assets
Loans and Advances- Non Current

(Unsecured, considered gooa)
Carried at amortized cast
Security Deposits

Other Non-Current Financial Assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Carried af amortized cost

Balance with Banks in deposils accounts
Capital Advances

Non Current Tax Asscts (Net)

Advance Tax {INet of I'rovision for income Tax)
GST Refund Feceivable

Enventories

(Af cost or NRV whichever is lower)
Forgign Currencies

Current Investments

Investiment Measured at faiy Value through Profit & Loss
Investment in mutual fund-Unquoted

Disclosure of non-current investments

Investment carried al deemed cost
Investnent carried at fair value through FVTPL (Market Price)
Investment carried at fair value through OC (Market Price}

Disclosure of non-current investments
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market Value

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregale amound af write off and impairment in value of Investments

{Amount in INR Lakhs}

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 3%, 2019
34,77 52.46
34.77 52,46

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
47.72 7.00
33.41 -
81.14 7.00

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As ab
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
46,28 46.27
i51.24 - 141,61
197.52 187.88

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
March 3%, 2020 March 31, 2019
- 1.59
- ’ " 1.59

(Amount in INR Lakhs}

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
18.64 601.21
18.64 601.21

(Amount in INR Lakhs}

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

" 18.64 601.21

(Amount in INR Lakhs}

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

18.64 601.21
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i2

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Trade Receivables As at As at
March 37, 2020 March 31, 2019
- (lnsecured, considervd good)
Carried at amortized cost .
Trade Receivables from Others 355,03 3,414.67
355.0% 3,414.67
Less: Allowances for bad & doubt{ul debts - -
355.05 3.414.67

13

14

15

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Cash and Cash Equivalents As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balance with banks:
- In Current account 4,765.87 732.63
Remittance in Transit” - 12,940.26
Cash in hand 97.07 196.48
4,562.94 13,869.37

* Remitlance in transit relales to amount remitted by Money Transfer Overseas Principal pertaining to International Maney Transfer (IMT) Business
on reporting date. The remittance is normally received in the Domestic Bank Account on T+1 day basis, however, io the extent of the intermiitent
hoelidays, the remiltance is delayed. Since the amount is remiitled on reperting date, the same js reduced from Trade Receivables and disclosed under
Cash and Cash Equivalents.

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Other Bank Balances As at ) - As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balance with banks:
-~ In Deposits accounts ) 1,964.02 1,865.79
1,964.02 1,865.79

Restricted Cash

Note 14.1 ,

Bank Deposit includes amount of USD 25,350,032 (CY: INR 1861.94 lakhs, PY: INR 1753.83 lakhs) which has been received as collateral security
deposits from the Oversees Principals. -
Note 14.2

*Includes deposits of INR 77.75 Lakh (As on 31 March 2019: Rs. 68.04 Lakh) pledged with banks.

Note 14.3 Current Classifications

*Ineludes deposits with original maturity of more than 29 months of Rs. 47.72 Lakh {As on 31 March 2019: 73.81)

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Current Loans and Advances As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Linsecured, considered good) .
Carried at ammortized cost
Inter Corporate Deposit to related parties (Refex note 45) 20,318.82 26,113.21

20,118.82 26,113.21
Note 15.1 Terms and Secarity ’ ' :

The inter corporate deposil carries interest @ 9% per annum and is repayable en demand,




Ebix Money Fxpress Private Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

16 Other Current Financial Assets

i

(Unsecured, considered good)
Carried at mnortized cost
Tinterest Accrued on Fixed Deposit

Intevest accrued & due on ICD to velated parties (Refer nole 45)

Accrued Incorne
Cither Receivables

Oxher Current Assels

Advance to Sub Agents

Advarnce to Vendors

Advance lo employees
Duties & taxes recoverable

Prepaid Expenses

(This space has been lefi blank infentionally)

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
14.47 38.95
2,509.37 176.46
207.96 207.96
118.96 66.41
2,850.75 489.78

(Amount in INR Lalkhs)

As at
March 31, 202¢ March 31, 2019
85.92 531.90
154.75 1,216.49
1,163.3% 530,83
2.88 44,78
1,206.85 2.324.00




Ebix Money Express Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18 Share Capital

a. Authorized Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each (par value)
272,000,000 (March 31, 2019: 32,000,000 Equity Share

b. lIssued, subscribed & fully paid up:
Equity Shares of Rs. 13/~ each (par value)
30,954,598 (March 31, 2019: 30,954,598) Equity Shares

¢, Terms and rights attached to Equity Shares

{Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

3,200.00 3,200.00
3,200,00 3,200.00
349546 3,095.46
3,095.46 3,095.46

The company has only one class of equity share having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Hach helder of equity share is entitie to one vole per share.

In the event of liquidalion of the company, the holder of equity shares will be endit

distribution of all preferential amounts.

ted Lo receive any of the remaining assat of the company after

d. Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:!

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Particulars Number of Shares

(Amount in INR

Numsber of Shares {Amount in INR

Lakhs) Lakhs)
Qutstanding beginning of the year 30,954,598 3,095.46 30,954,598 3,095.46
~ lIssued during the year - - - .
Qutstanding at the end of the year 30,954,598 3,095.46 30,954,598 3,095.46

~

_ Shareholders holding moze than 5% of the Equity shares in the company

Name of the Equity Shareholders

As at March 31,2020

As at March 31, 2019

No. of Shares Percentage No. of Shares Percentage
EbixCash Private Limited 5,876,820 18.9%% 5,876,820 18.99%
{formerly known as Ebix Software India Pvi Lid)
Ebix Fincorp Exchange Pte Ltd 14,200,000 45.87% 14,200,000 45 87%
fbixCash World Money Limited 10,877,778 35.14% 10,877,778 35.14%

19 Other Equity

a. Securities Premium Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Allocations and appropriations
Balance at the end of year

L. Retained earnings
Balance ai the beginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Allocations and appropriations
Balance at the end of year

¢. Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Allocations and appropriations
Ralance at the end of year

d. Equity component of compound financial instrument
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year {Refer Note 20)
Less: Allocations and appropriations
Balance at the end of year

Total Equity (atb+ctd)

(Amount in INR Lakls)

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

32,019.64 32,019.64
32,019.64 32,019.64
10,491,28 1,949.08
2,728.03 £,542,19
13,219.31 10,491.27
(31.28) (26.08)
1.29 (5.208

(29.99) (31.28)

2,860.54 -

- 2,860.54

2,860.54 2,860.54_
4806950 '15,340.18
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¢. Nature and purpose of Reserves
Sceurities premium account
Securities premium reserve is used Lo record the premium on issuc of shares. The reserves are to be utilised in accordance with the provisiens of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Kemeasurements of defined benefit plans represents the following as per Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits:

{a} actuarial gains and Josses

{b) the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability {asset); and

{c) any change in the effect of the assel ceiling, excluding amounts inciuded in net interest on {he net defined benefit liability (asset).

Non-Current Liabilities
(Amount in INR Lakhs)’

20 Borrowings- Non Current As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Compulsery Convertible Debentures 2,824.37 3,103.09
2,824,37 3,103.09
Note 20.1;

679,900 Compulsory Cenvertible Debentures (CCD)Y of INR 1,000 each have been issued to Ebix Asia Holding Ine, Mauritius. These unsecured
debenlures carry interest rate of 9% p.a. Furlher, {hese CCD would be Compulsorily converted to cquity shares at the end of 10 years from the dale

of issue i.e. in financial year 2028-29.
{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Face value of compulsory convertible debentures 6,799.00 6,799.00
Equity Component of Compulsory Convertible debentures {2,860.54) {2,860.54}
Finance Cost differential (502.18) (223.46)
Payment made or TDS deducted - -
Liability Component of Compound financial instrument 3,436.28 3,715.00
Compulsory Convertible Debentures: Non Current Portion (refer note 20} 2,324.37 3,103.09
Compulsory Convertible Debentures: Current Portion (refer note 21) 611.91 611.91
Total ’ 3,436.28 3,715.00

{This space has been left blank in tentionally}
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{Amount in INR Lakhs}

21 Lease Liabilities- Non Current As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Carried at amortized cost
Lease Liabilities 273.00 -
273.00 -

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

22 Provisions- Won Current As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 201%
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 44) 56.14 45.84
Provision for Compensated Absences 8.95 8.95
65.09 54.7%

{Amount in INR Lakhs}

23 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net} As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Deferred Tax Liability:
Difference belween Book and Income Tax depreciation 5,531.61 3,61557
Others - 2101

5,531.61 3,636.68

_ Defersed Tax Assets: .

Provision for long terr employee benefits 19.52 15.84
Accumulaied L.osses 557.34 ) ) -
MAT Credit Entitlement 3,501.04 2,732.59
Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments 1,000.65 1,033.51
Lease Liability : 4.68 -
Others 0.97 -

5,084.21 3,781.94
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets} 44741 (145.26)
Reconciliation of Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (Amount in INR Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Opening Balance as on 1st April (145.26) 662.23
Deferred tax income/ (expense) during the period recognized in profit & Joss 592.13 (805.48}
Deferred tax income/ (expense) during the period recognized in Cther Equity - -
Deferred tax income/ {expense) during the period recognized in QCl 053 - ' {2.00)
Closing Balance 44741 {145.26)

{Amounr in INR Lalchs)

24 Borrowings- Current As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Secured - carvied at mnortized cost
Overdraft Facitity from Banks (refer note 24.1) 4,2006.00 19,646.2%

Linsecired - carvied at amortized cos!
fnter Corporate Deposit- From refated parties {Refer Note 24.3 and 33) 3,705.00 900.28

7,505.00 20,546.57
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25

26

27

Note 24.1 Overdraft Facility from Banks
a. Axis Bank

Secured by

- by way cf first parri passu charge on all current assets and Moveable Fixed Assets both present and future.

- by unconditional and irrevocable Corporate guarantee of Ebix Cash Private Limited to remain valid till end of the facility.
Repayment Tenns: Repayable or Demand

Interest charged @ MCLR plus 1% i.e. 8.80%

b. HDFC Banic:

Secured by

- by way of Debt Mutual funds.

- by way of exclusive charge over entire current assels and Moveable Fixed Assels both present and future, except specifically charged Lo tender.

It carries interest rate from 9.25% to 9.75% p.a.
Note 24.3 Inter Corporate Deposits

Inter corporate depesit from related party is repavable on demand. It carries interest yate of 9% p.a.

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Trade Payables As af As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Carvied at amortized cost
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises {refer nete 40) - -
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises” . 821.19 5,865.93
' 821.19 5,865.93

* Includes principal amount of toreign imward remittance of customers payable to sub-agents.
The Company has not received intimation {rom any of the 'suppliers’ regarding their status under MEMED Act, 2006 and hence disclosures if any,
relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/ payable as required have not been (urnished.

{Amouut in INR Lakhs)

Leasc Liabilities- Cnyrent As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Carried at amortized cost
lease Liabilities 122,76 -
122.76 -
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
Other Current Financial Liabilities As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Current Maturities of Finance Liability lowards Compulsory Convertible Debentures 611.91 611.91
Payable to velated party [Refer note 45) 462.58 1,640.90
Overdue Inferest on
- On Compulsory Convertible Debenluses {rom related parlies {Refer note 45) 1,100.89 488.98
- On Intercorporate Deposit from related parties (Refer note 45) 256.00 1.61
Collateral Securities From Principal Agents 1,861.94 ) 1,753.84
Expenses Payable ) 54.29 88.09

4,347.63 4,585.33
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

28 Other Current Liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Trade advances from Related Party {Refer note 45) - 900.00
Statutory dues 4452 80.91
Advance from Customers 665.99 -
Provision for Expenses 197.59 168.87
Other Payables 102.96 17.72

1,011.06 1,167.50

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

29 Short Term Provisions As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for employce benefits
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 44) 1.95 214
Provision for Compensated Absences - -
1.95 2.14

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

30 Current Tax Liability As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision [or Income Tax 761.00 2,200.00
Provision for Inlerest on Income Tax B 149.71
Less: Advance Tax Paid (460.37) (53.10)
300.63 2,296.61

(This space has been left biank intentionaliy)
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31 Revenue from Operations

Sales of Foreign Currency 374.58
Less: Cost of Sales of Foreign Currency

- Purchase of Foreign Currencies (870.00)
- Change in Inventory ({Increase}/Decrease) (1.59)

Sale of Services
- Income from Commissions
- Income from Signing Bonus
- Income from Incentives
- Ancillary Income
- Income from Promotional Activities

31.1 Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade
Opening Stock of Currency
Less: Closing Stock of Currency

Changes in inventory ({Increase)/Decrease)

31.2 Disaggregation of revenue

{Amount in INR Lakhs)
For the year ended " For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
44885
(433.14)
299 {12.36) 3.35
9,912.35 13,609.05
- 5,975.68
216
23.18 -
110 1,000.00
9,941,73 20,588.08

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
159 13.95
- 159
1.59 12.36

i. With effect from April 1, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 '‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers” that replaces Ind AS 18. It
introduces a new five-step approach to measuring and recognising revenue from contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for services to a customer.

il. Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss:

Revenue based on product and services

Income from Sale/ Purchase of Fereign Currency
Money Transfer Service

QOther Services

iii, Revenue based on geography

India

Qverseas

iv, Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows

Coniracted Price
Adjustments
Revenue recognized

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
2,59 3.35
$,912.35 13,609.05
26.39 6,975.68
9,941.73 20,588.08
{Amount in INR Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019
27.28 6,979.03
9,914.45 13,609.05
9,941.73 20,588.08
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
9,941.73 20,588.08
9,941.73 20,588.08
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V.

vi.

32

33

Meovement in Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

Conlract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue carned over billings on contracts, Contract assets are transferred to unbilled
reveruse when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms. The contract labilities
primarily relate to the advance consideration received froms the customers which are referred as “advances from customers”.

There is no contracl asset or contract liability during the year.

Information about major customers:

A major customer is defined as a customer that represents 10% or greater of total revenues. The Company does not believe that the risk
associated with these customers or vendors will lave an adverse effect on the business. Details of cuslomer with more lhan 10% ot revenue are
given as below:

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Western Union Financial Services Inc. §,754.70 12,574.81
Continental Exchange Sotutions, Inc. dba Ria Financial 1,097.07 6,914.33
Services
9,861.77 19,489.14

: Note on Revenue Recognition

Income from forex services comprises of sale of Foreing currency, traveler's chegues, travel cards cte. In line with established international
practice, the income arising from the buying and selling of foreign currencies is included on the basis of margins achieved, since inclusion on the
basis of their gross value wouid not be meaningful and potentially misleading for use as an indicator of the level of the Company’s business.

:

Revenue disaggregation as per indusiry vertical and geography has been included in segment information (Refer note 42).

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Other Income I For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Foreign Exchange Gain/ (L.oss) 494,38 §75.63
Intterest Income
-Bank Deposits 6365 65.57
-Inler corporate deposit to related party (Refer note 45) : 2,592.12 196.07
-Loans to others - : 69.59
~Income Tax Refund - 1.16
- [rom financial assets carried at amortized cost 3.97 -
[ncome From Investments 21.08 : © 4114
Liabilities no longer required written back ) 018 -
Miscellaneous Incomes : 1272 1.87
3,188.10 1,351.03
(Amouni iu INR Lakhs)
Employee Benefils Expense For the year ended For the year ended
) March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Salaries and wages 61347 - 728.43
Contribution to provident fund & other funds (Refer Note 44) . 3470 43.14
Staff Gratuity {(Reler Note 44) 13.37 13.54
Staff wellare expenses 374 2.29

665.28 787.40
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{Amount in INR Lakhs)

34 Finance Costs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest Expenses
- 1o inter corporate deposit (Refer note 45) 282.66 75.54
- to berowings from benks/ financial institutions 1,528.65 34322
Finance Cost on Cormpulsorily Coavertible Debentures 333.20 305.16
Finance Cost on Lease Liablity 3794 -
Interest on Statutory Dues 4.52 150.22
Other Financial Charges 0.66 0.03
2,187.62 §74.17

35

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

{Amaunt in INR Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciation of praperty, plant and equipment (refer note 3} 7.03 1.65
Depreciation of rightof use assets {refer note 4) 108.78
Amortisation of Other intangible assets (refer note 6) 6.37 6.35
122.18 8.00

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

36 Other Expenses For the year ended For the year ended
' March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Commission To Agents 4,33377 6,032.59
Incentives To Agents - 277.58
Technology Support Expenses 769.93 1,635.03
Rank Charges 42,15 27.75
Rent Expense - 121.94
Short term leases (Refer Note 43) 4090 -
Legal, Professional And Consultancy Charges 148,57 198.91
Insurance ' 1.66 S 203
Travelling & Conveyance 117.18 122.73
Rates & Taxes 0.71 2574
Printing and Stationary 21.16 2715
Repair & Maintenance 3.92 15.50
Advertisement & Business Promotion 404.08 1,681.86
Audit Fee 8.70 8.00
Courier & Postage 7.22 16.99
Telephone, Communication & i Support Charges 32.03 37.44
Water, Power & Fuel 16.34 1229
Office Administration Expenses 7.95 12,53
Sundry Balances Wriiten Off - 4245
Miscellaneous Expenses 6.43 12.80
5,962.68 10,311.32
36.1 Audit Fees (Amount in INR Lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Statutory Audit 6.50 6.50
Tayx, Audit 1.50 1.50
Certification 0.70 -
Qut of Pocket - -
Tetal 8.70 8.00
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37 Income Tax

37.1 Income Tax Expenses {Amount in INR Lakhs}

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current Tax Expenses

Current year 761.00 2,200.00

Adjustment for previous Year 110.90 21.51
§71.90 2,221.51

Deferred Tax Expenses

Change in recognised temporary diflerences 59213 (805.48)

Total Tax Expenses 1,464.03 1,416.03

47.2 Reconciliation of Bffective Tax Rate

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Profit/ {I.oss) before Tax 4,192.07 9,958.22
Applicable Tax Rate 29.12% 27.82%
Computed Tax Expenses 1,220.73 2,770.38
Tax Effect ofs
Tax rate change on opening Deferred Tax 1.89 (280.93)
Expenses disallowed 149.85 -
Earlier year tax adjustments 110,90 21.51
Deferred tax on Hability component of Compound 32.87 (1,033.51)
Financial Instrument
Deferred tax not created in earlier years - {64.53)
Permanent Difference - 41.65
Other Adjustments {52.21) (38.54)
Tax Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss 1,464.03 1,416.03
Effective Tax Rate 34,92 14.22

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

38§ Other Comprehensive Income For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1.82 (7.20)
Deferred Tax relating to remeasurement of defined 0.53 (2.00)
1.29 {5.20)

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

39 Earnings/ (Loss) Per Share (EPS) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Profit atiributable to equity sharcholders (A) 2,728.03 8,542.19
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each 33,220,931 32,885,038
outstanding during the year (B)*
Basic,/ Diluted Earnings per share of Rs. 10 each (A/%) §.21 25.98

{Amount inRs)

*Wejghted average number of shares have been caleulated considering shares to be issued
Debentures.

on conversion of Compulsorily Convertible
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40 Disclosure under the Micro, Sinall and Medium Enterprises Develepment Act, 2006 {27 of 2006} {"MSMED Act, 2006"):

41

A,

42

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

i the principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at - .
the end of cach accounting year;

i the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Acy, 2006 - .
along with the amount of the payment made 1o the supplicr beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year;

i, the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - -
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under this Act

iv.  the amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting - -
yeat; and

v.  the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - -
until such dage when the interest dues as above are actually paid 1o the small enterprise, for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Seetion 23 of MSMED Act,
2006,

The information related to Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information avatlalle with the Company.

Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

Contingent Liabilities
The company is nol having any contingent liability.

Capital And Other Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts on Capital Account remaining Lo be executed and not provided for in accounts Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

Segment Information;

The Management Information System of the Company identifies and monitors MTSS (Money Transfer Service Scheme) business as the business
segment. The Company is managed organizationally as a single unit. In the opinion of the management, the Company is primarily engaged in the
business of MTSS. As the basic nature of these activities ave governed by the same sot of risks and returns, these constitute and are grouped as a
single segment. Accordingly, there is only one Reportable Segment for the Company which is "MTSS Business', hence ne specific disclosures have
been made.

Entity wide disclosures

A, Information about products and services
During the year, the Company primarily operated in one product line, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable,

B. tnformation about geographical areas

The company derives revenue from following major geographical areas: ‘ (Amount in INR Lakhs})
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Oulside India 9,914.45 19,584.73
Domaestic 27.28 1,003.35
Total 9,941.73 20,588.08

Domestic segment revenue mcludes sales and services to customers located in India and overseas segmenl revenue includes sales and services
rendered Lo customers located outside India,
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C. Information about major customers (from external customers) (Amount in INR Lalkhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Western Union Financial Services Inc. 8,784.70 12,574.81
Continental Exchange Solutions, Inc. dba Ria Financial Services 1,097 07 6,914.33
9,881.77 19,489.14

43 Ind AST16 Lease Disclosure

A.

D.

The break-up of current and non-carrent lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 is as follows
{Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2020
Lease Liabilities- Non Current 273.00
f.ease Liabilities- Current 122.76

395.76

The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended Mareh 31, 2020 is as follows
(Amount in INR Lakhs}

For the year ended

March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning 475.96
Additions . .
Finance cost accrued daring the period ) 37.94
Deletions N ‘ . "
Payment of lease liabilities {118.14)

Balance at the end 395,76

The defails of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 on an undiscounted basis are as follows - ‘
(Amount in INR Lakhs}

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2020

Not Jater than T year 122.76
Later thanr 1 year and not later than 5 years ' 312,89
Later than 5 years - 38,57

Rental expense recorded for shorl-ierm leases was INR 40.9¢ Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020.

(This space has becir loff bland intentiana’ly]
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44 Disclosure as per IND AS 19 (Revised) “Employee Benefits” are as under;

The company contributes to the following post-employement defined benefit plans in India

A) Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company makes contribution lowards employees’ provident fund. Under these scheme, the Company is required to contribute specified
percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of these schemes, Lo these defined contribution schemes. The company has recognized following
amount as expenses and included in “Employee Benefits Expense” in Note 33 of the financial statements.

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 3%, 2019
Employer’s contribution to Provident Fund 34,70 43,14
34.70 4314

The company contributes to the following pest-employment defined benefit plans in India

B Defined Benefit Plan:
The company has a defined benefit gratuily plan. Fvery employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to Gratuity on terms
not less favourable than the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The scheme is funded with "The Employees’ Graluity Fund Scheme®
managed by Reliance Nippon Life Insurance Company Limited.
The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at 31
March 2019, The present value of the defined benefil obligations a nd the related currenl service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.
Based on the acluarial valuation ebtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in
the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:
{Amount in INR Lakhs)
{a) Net defined benefit liability As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Liability for Gratuity 58.09 47.98
Totai employee Benefit liability 58.09 47,98
Current 56.14 45.84
Non-Current 1.95 2,14

(i} (a) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation

{Amount in INR Lakhs}

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 33, 2019
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 65.22 66.31
Interest Cost 5.00 511
Current Service Cost §.70 10.81
Acturial Losses/ (Gains) (3.21) 5.90
Benefits Paid (14.79) {22.93)
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the close of the year 61,91 65,22
(b) Changes in the Fair Value of Pian Assets and reconciliation thereof {Amount in INR Lakhs)}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 33, 2019
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 17.24 nn
Adjustments - -
Add : Expected Return on Flan Assels 0.56 1.09
Add/(Less) :Other charges-Fund Management (0.63) -
Add : Contributions - -
Less : Benefits Paid (13.35) (14.85}

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the close of the year 3.82 17.24
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{¢) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Particulars
Present Value of Defined Benefil Obligation

Less ; Fair Value of Plan Assets
Present Value of unfunded obligation

{d) Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows :

Particulars

In Income Statement

Current Service Cost

Net Interest Cost

Expecled return on Plan Asset
Total

In Qther Comprehensive Income
Net actuartal loss/ {gain)

Total

{e) Change in Net Defined Benefit Obligation
Particulars -

Net defined benefit liability at the start of the period
Acquisition adjustment

Tetal Service Cost

Net Interest cost {Income)

Re-measurements

Contribution paid to the Fund

Benefits Paid

Nel defined benefit liability at the end of the period

{f} Investment Details:

Funds Managed by Insurer {investment with insurer)
(g) Actuarial Assumptions as at the Balance Sheet date
Particulars

Dviscount Rale
Salary Escalation Rate

{Amount in INR Lakhs}

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 33, 2019
61.91 65.22
(3.82) (17.24)
58.09 47.98

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
970 10.81
367 272
13.37 13.54
11.82) 7.20
(1.82) 7.20

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Tor the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 Marcn 31, 2019
47 98 35.31
9.70 10.81
3.67 2.72
(1.82) 7.20
(1.44) {8.07)
58.09 47.98
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
160 % 100%

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
6.92% 7.66%
7.00% 7.00%

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is cerlified by the actuary.

‘The Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assels is determined considering several applicable factors, mainly the composition of Plan Assets held,
assessed risks, historical results of return on Plan Assets and the Company’s policy for Plan Assets Mahagement. )

The expected contributions for Defined Benefit Plan for the next financial year will be in line with FY 2019-20.
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{h) Maturity Profile of Defined benefit Obligations

Year For the year ended Tor the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Oto1 Year 1.95 2.14
1to 2 Year 1.96 1.74
2to3 Year . 1.63 1.99
3t0 4 Year . 1.62 1.70
4 t0 5 Year . 518 1.67
5te 6 Year 1.40 4.76
6 Year onwards ‘ 48,16 51.23

(i) Sensitivity Analysis:

Significant Actuarial Assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate sexpectad salary increase and employee
turnover. The sensiivily analysis below, have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions oceurring at end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The result of Sensitivity analysis is given below:

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

. As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Change in discounting ratc {delta effect of +7- 0.5%) (3.93) 4,31 (4.06) 4,44
. Change in rate of salary increase {delta effect of +/- 0.5%) 4.29 (3.95) 445 {4.10)

{This space has been leff dlank inteniionally)
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46 Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management
The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognized, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial Hability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2(h) to the financiaj statemenls.

Fair Value Measurements
A. Financial [nstruments By Category

The carrying value of financial inslruments by categories as of March 31, 2020 (Amount in INR Lalkh)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
FVTPL Amortized Cost FVTPL Amortized Cost
Financial assets
Loans and Advances - 34.77 - 52.46
(Other non current financial assets - 81.14 - 7.00
Investments 18.64 - 601.21 -
Short Term Loan and Advances - 20,118.82 . 26,113.21
Trade Receivables - 355.05 - 341467
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 4,862.94 - 13,869.37
Other Bank Balances - 1,964.02 . 1,865.79
Cther Current Financial Assets - 2,850.75 - 459.78
18.64 30,267.48 50%1.21 45,812.28
Financial Liabilitics
Borrowings (non Current) - 2,824.37 - 3,503,090
[.ease Liabilities 395.76 -
Borrowings {Currentj - 7,905.00 - 20,546.57
Trade Payables - 821.19 - 5,865.93
Cther Financial Liabiiities (Current) 4,347.61 4,585.33
- 16,293.94 - 34,100.92

B, Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruinents that are:

(a) recognised and measured at fair value and

(b} measured at amertised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified ils financial instruments into
the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of cach level follows underneath the table.

Financial assets measured at Fair Value - recurring fair value measurements {Amount in INR Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments 18.64 - - 18.64
18.64 - - 18.64

Financial assets and Habilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
{Amount in INR Lakh)

As at March 31, 2020

Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Loans and Advances - - ‘ 3497 34.77
Other non current financial assets - - 81.14 81.14
Short Term Loan and Advances - - 20,118.82 20,118.82
Trade Receivables - - 355.05 355.05
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 4,862.94 4,862.94
Other Bank Balances - - 1,964.02 1,964.02
Other Current Financial Asse(s - - 2,850.75 2,850.75
- - 30,267 48 30,267.48
Financial Liabilities
Berrowings {non Current) - - 2,824.37 282437
Lease Liabilities - - 395.76 395,76
Borrowings (Current) - - 7.,905.00 7,905.00
Trade Payables - - 821.19 821.19
Other Financial Liabilities (Current) - - 4,347.01 4,347.61

- - 16,293.94 16,293.94
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{Amount in INR Lakh}

Particulars As at March 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
[avestments 601.21 - - 601.21
601.21 “ - 601.21

Financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
{Amount in INR Lakh}

As at March 31, 2019

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Loans and Advances - - 52.46 52.46
Cther non current financial assets - - 7.00 7.00
Short Terrn Loan and Advances - - 26,113.21 26,113.21
Trade Receivables - - 3,414.67 3,414.67
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 13,869.37 13,869.37
Other Bank Balances - - 1,865.7% 1,865.79
Other Current Financial Assels - - 48%.78 489.78
- ~ 45,812.28 45,812.,28
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings {non Current) - - 3,103.09 3,103.09
Lease Liabilities - - - -
- Borrowings (Current) : - - 20,546.57 20,546.57
"Trade Payables ‘ - - ' 5,865.93 5,865.93
QOther Financial Liabilities (Current) - - 4,585.33 4,58533
- " 3410092 34,100.92

Level Tt Lovel 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and
mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments {including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued
using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the clesing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of [inancial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-thecounter <lerivatives) is
determined using valuation technigques which maximise he use of observable market data and rely as litlle as possible on entity-specific estimates. if
all significant inputs required to fair vatue an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 31 If one or more of the significant inpuis is not based on observable market data, the instrument is inciuded in level 3.-This is the case for
unlisted equity securities.

Transfers between Levels 1 and 2

There have been no transfers between Level T and Level 2 during the reporling periods

Valuation technique used tu determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used Lo value financial instruments include:

-the use of quoted markel prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

-fair value of derivalive financial instruments are based on broker quotalions

Al fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

Financial Risk Management

The company is exposed primarily to credit, liquidity, foreign currency exchange rates and market risiwhich may adversely impact the fair value of
its financial instruments. The Company assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment and seeks to mitigate polential adverse effects on
the financial performance of the Company.

Risk Management Framework

The company is exposed primarily to credit, liquidity and market risk which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The
Company assesses the unpredictability of the financial environnient and seeks to mitigale polential adverse effects on the financial performance of
the Company. :
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i. Credit Risk

Credil risk is the risk of financial Joss to company if a customer or counterparty to the financial instrument fails to meet its financial obligations, and
arises principally {rom company's receivables from customers. -
Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risl principally consist of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other
balances with banks and other financial assets. Nene of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk other
than trade receivable,

The company maintains its Cash and cash equivalents and Bank Deposits with banks having good reputation, good past track record and high
quality credit rating and also reviews their credit rating on a timely basis

‘The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 26,727 90 Lakhs as on
913,20 and Rs. 46,413.49 Lakhs as on 31,3.19 being the total carrying value of investments, cash & cash equivalents, trade receivables, bank balances
and other current and non carrent financial assets,

Trade Receivables

Ind AS requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company assesses at each date of statements of financial
position whether a financial assel or a group of financial assets 15 impaired. The Company recognises Lifetime expected losses for all conlract assets
and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit Josses are measured at an
amount cqual to the 12 months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial
assel has increased significantly since initial recognition.

In determining the allowances for credit losses of trade veceivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit
loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes inlo account historical credit loss experience and is
adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in
the provision matrix.

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is Rs. 355.05 Lakhs {As on 31st March 2019 Rs.3,414.67 Lakhs).

The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debls and impairment that represents ils estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and
other receivables and investments. During the period, the Company has made impairment of trade receivables. The Company management alse
pursues all options for recovery of dues wherever necessary based on its internal assessment. A default on a financial assel is when counterparty
fails to make payments within 365 days when they fall due.

Movements in alowance for credit losses of receivables is as below: ' (Amount in INR Lakh)
As at As at
! Mearch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Opening balance - -
Provision for Doubtful debt recognized - g
Closing balance ' ) - -

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are to be
setlled by delivering cash or anather financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its labilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and
by matching the maturity profites of financial assets and liabilities.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities al the reporting dale. The ainounts are gross and undiscounted, and
excluding contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of nelting agrecments.

(Amournt in INR Lakh}

As March 31, 2020

Non-derivative financial liabilities Uptolyear Betweenland2 Between 2 and 5 More than 5 year Total
: : years years

Long Term Liabilities

Borrowings 61191 611.91 1,084 57 51599 2,824 37

L.ease Liablity ' . . : -

Short Term Liabilities ’

Borrowings 7,905.00 - - - 7,905.00

Trade payables 82119 - - - 821.19

Other financial labilities 4,347.61 - - 4,347.61

Total 13,685.71 611.91 1,0684.57 515,99 ] 15,898.18
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As March 31, 2019

Naon-derivative financial liabilities Uptelyear Betweenland2 Between 2 and 5 More than 5 year Total
years years )

Long Term Liabilities .
Borrowings 278.71 303.71 1.084.57 1,436.09 3,103.0%
Short Term Liabilities .

Borrowings 20,546.57 20,546.57
Trade payables 5,865.93 5,865.93
Other financial liabilities 4,585.33 4,585,33
Total 31,276.54 303.71 1,084.57 1,436.09 34,100.92

iii, Marlket risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices
{such as interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates) or in the price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in
market rates and prices. Market risk is altribulable to all market risk sensitive financial inslruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables
and all short term and long-term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related 1o foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk,
Thus, the Company’s exposure 1o market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in
foreign currencies.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to fixed deposits and borrowings from financial institutions. However,
the Company does not have material borrowings with floating interest rates therefore, it does nol have any material impact.

Following table gives company’s shorl-lerm and long term loans and borrowings, including interest rate profiles:
(Amount in INK Lakh)

Variable Rate*® As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Financial Assets
Inter Corperate Deposii 20,118.82 26,113.21
20,118.82 26,113.21
Financial Liabilities
Short term Borrowings- Secured- From Banks 4,200.00 19,646.29
Inter Corporate Depaosit 3,705.00 900.28
7,905.00 20,546.57
Fixed Rate
Financial Liabilities
Compulsory Convertible Debenfures 6,799 6,799
6,799 6,799

* Interest rate on financial liabilities is variable during the year.

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rate instruments

The company's fixed rate borrowings are carried al amortized cost. They are therefore not subject Lo interest rafe risk as defined in IND AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flow will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / decreased equity and profit or loss by
amounts shown below, This analyses assumes that all other variables, in particular, foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant. This
calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been caleulated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that
date, The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debl outstanding during the period.

(Amount in INR Lakh}

Profit or loss

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
Financial Assets (201} 201 (261) 261
Financial Liabilities 79 {78 205 (205}

Cash Flow sensitivity {net) (122) 122 (56) 56
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47 Capital management
The primary objeciive of the Company’s capitel management'is (o ensure thal it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholder
value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in ecornomic conditions, amnual operating plans and long
term and other strategic mvestment plans. In erder to maintain or adjust the capiial structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid lo sharcholders or issue new shares. The Company is not subject to any externaily imposed capital requirements.

The Company monitors capilal using a vatic of ‘debt to eguity’, For this purpose, debt is defined as total Habilities, comprising interest-bearing loans

and borrowings. Equity comprises all compoenents of equity including share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity share
holders.

The Company's adiusted net debt lo equily ratio at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is as follows -
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Borrowings

Non current and current borrowings 10,729.37 23,649.65
Current maturities of Long term borrowings 611.91 611.91
Total debt 11,341.28 24,261.57
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (4,862.94) (12,869.37)
Net debt 6,478.34 16,392.20
Total equity 51,164.96 48,435.64
Net debt to equity ratio 0.13 0.21

(This space has been left blank inlentionally)
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